CABINET

MINUTES of the meeting held on Tuesday, 16 March 2010 commencing at 2.00 pm and finishing at 4.28 pm

Present:

Voting Members: Councillor Keith R. Mitchell CBE – in the Chair

Councillor David Robertson (Deputy Chairman)

Councillor Jim Couchman Councillor Ian Hudspeth Councillor Louise Chapman Councillor Michael Waine Councillor Rodney Rose Councillor Mrs J. Heathcoat

Other Members in Attendance:

Councillor Zoe Patrick (Agenda Item 6)
Councillor David Turner (Agenda Item 7)
Councillor Anne Purse (Agenda Items 8 & 12)
Councillor Liz Brighouse, OBE (Agenda Item 9)
Councillor John Goddard (Agenda Item 13)
Councillor Jean Fooks (Agenda Item 15)

Officers:

Whole of meeting Chief Executive, S. Whitehead (Democratic Services)

Part of Meeting

Agenda Item Officer Attending

6. K. Wilcox (Financial Planning)

7. Head of Transport, J. Disley (Transport Policy &

Strategy)

8. Director for Environment & Economy, I. Walker

(Sustainable Development)

9, 10 & 11 K. Griffin (Commissioning, Performance & Quality

Assurance)

12. Head of Transport, M. Kraftl (Transport)

Deputy Chief Fire Officer, M. Crapper (Fire & Rescue)Director for Environment & Economy, D. Waller

(Sustainable Development)

15. Corporate Performance and Review Manager

The Committee considered the matters, reports and recommendations contained or referred to in the agenda for the meeting, together with a schedule of addenda tabled at the meeting, and decided as set out below. Except insofar as otherwise specified, the reasons for the decisions are contained in the agenda, reports and schedule, copies of which are attached to the signed Minutes.

23/10 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(Agenda Item. 2)

Councillor Michael Waine declared a personal interest in respect of item 11, as a school governor at Cooper School, Bicester.

24/10 MINUTES

(Agenda Item. 3)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2010 were approved and signed.

The Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2010 were approved and signed subject to the addition of apologies for absence being recorded for Councillors Heathcoat and Robertson.

25/10 QUESTIONS FROM COUNTY COUNCILLORS

(Agenda Item. 4)

Councillor Jean Fooks had given notice of the following question to the Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement:

(1) Noting that Lower Wolvercote children will be given priority from September 2011 at Wolvercote School, what steps will he be taking to ensure that there will be sufficient places for all children living in North Oxford to be given a school place at their nearest school or at another within walking distance?'

Councillor Michael Waine replied that he and Roy Leach, Strategic Lead, School Organisation & Planning were meeting parents tonight. He and the Directorate were working in the context of the national picture and in a difficult financial situation. He had looked at the issue of site size and was working hard to find a resolution.

Councillor John Goddard had given notice of the following question to the Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement:

(2)'Is the Cabinet Member willing to explore all options available, including use of the school nursery, use of the adjacent Young People's Club and use of an on-site temporary classroom, to ensure that none of the 15 children living in Lower Wolvercote currently not allocated a place at their village school, that is the only reasonably accessible primary school, will be excluded from the school in September 2010?'

Councillor Michael Waine replied that all options were being explored. He was looking for a holistic plan for North Oxford and for Oxford itself. Facing facts there were a number of schools on restricted sites. He had to work within what the County had got.

Supplementary question:

Councillor Goddard asked the Cabinet Member to acknowledge that the access from the Wolvercote School to any other schools was less accessible than from other schools. It was an impossible journey to North Kidlington. He referred to accommodation being available on site and asked that all options be looked at and whether the Cabinet Member would make sure that all children get in.

Councillor Michael Waine replied that he was looking to a happy solution for the parents and the community. He referred to the changes to the admissions code and commented that the changes had only been proposed once this year's process was already underway. It was not possible to change rules mid way through the process. He noted that not all 16 had chosen the school as their first preference. Eynsham was a second preference for one family. He added that his own daughter had not got her first preference and that any school in the country had to point out that a place in nursery did not carry an automatic place in the primary school.

Councillor Jean Fooks had given notice of the following question to the Cabinet member for Growth and Infrastructure (Referred to Councillor Rodney Rose as the relevant Cabinet Member)

(3)'The County Council has recently announced that an extra million pounds is being made available to repair roads and pavements damaged by the recent bad weather. A share of this will be going to the City Council, on the basis of the number of miles of road, the proportion being the same as the proportion of the total miles of road in the county. This means that the city is only being allocated £65,000, as it has 6.5% of the total miles of road in the county. But the city roads are much more heavily used than most of the rest of the county's roads. Indeed Cllr Hudspeth himself said at Cabinet on 9 March that roads would be more damaged by having more vehicles on them. Will he acknowledge that the formula is fundamentally flawed and adjust the proportion allocated to the city in accordance with traffic volume rather than miles of road?'

Councillor Rodney Rose:

We have agreed that we will provide an allocation to the city council on the same basis as we allocate our annual highway maintenance budget. This will provide about 6% of the additional money to the City Council which equates to approximately £72,000. As Councillor Fooks is aware the County Council is responsible for all of the major routes within the city which are the ones carrying the greatest levels of traffic. Therefore this is considered to be a fair allocation of funds.

Councillor Patrick Greene had given notice of the following question to the Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure

(4) The Chairman of Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee thanks the Cabinet Member for his e-mail of the 10 March 2010 relating to the fuller version of LPT3 Draft Policies. Will the Cabinet Member please ensure the comments made by the Growth & Infrastructure Committee meeting of the 10 March 2010, that have been listed and passed to him by officers, be given due consideration, particularly those relating to public consultation that is to take place in the Summer of 2010?'

Councillor Ian Hudspeth:

'I was happy to ensure that all Cabinet Members were made aware of the full policies. Thank you for the comments of the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee which are included in the addenda for today's meeting.

Supplementary question: 'I was not aware that comments/suggestions by the LTP3 working group on policy statements were not immediately recorded in the draft policy statements but will be in future when other comments are considered.

May I go straight to Road Safety and Policy RS3 – 'The County Council will use a range of measures to achieve casualty reductions.' In the policy statements under this heading reference is made to urban 20 mph speed limits. The working group suggested this limit might apply to rural areas of the County outside schools.

I have received from the officer this morning the suggested wording for the policy statement which reads:

"Consideration of further 20mph speed limits, including:

- in urban areas, if monitoring of Oxford's 20 mph scheme proves of benefit in terms of meeting speed and casualty reduction objectives
- in other locations where these can contribute to meeting other objectives, for example outside rural schools"

Therefore, my question to the Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure is as follows:

When LTP 3 is signed off in 2011, will he consider a pilot project of introducing a 20 mph speed limit outside South Moreton Primary School in my Division which is on the rat run for traffic that has been requested by local residents and parents over a number of years now?

It is clear that by introducing 20 mph speed limits in the city it has raised expectations in rural Oxfordshire.'

Councillor Hudspeth replied that he would wait for the evaluation of the city centre scheme and could not give a guarantee for any particular scheme at this stage.

26/10 PETITIONS AND PUBLIC ADDRESS

(Agenda Item. 5)

The following requests to address the meeting had been agreed:

Speaker	Item	
Mr C. Lang, Hands Across	4. Petition	
Wolvercote		
Councillor Zoe Patrick	6. Financial Monitoring – March 2010	
Councillor David Turner	7. Local Transport Plan2011-2030	
	Draft Policies	
Councillor Anne Purse	8. Homes & Communities Agency	
	Single Conversation: Local	
	Investment Plan	
	12. City Street Scene Manual (Part	
	One)	
Councillor Liz Brighouse, OBE	9. Wood Farm Primary Schools and	
	Slade Nursery School	
Mr Steve Allen, FBU 13. IRMP Action Plan – final		
Councillor John Goddard	13. IRMP Action Plan – final	
Councillor Jean Fooks	15. Performance Management: 3 rd	
	Quarter Progress Report Against	
	Priorities and Targets	

(A) Petition in respect of Wolvercote Primary School

Mr C. Lang, Hands Across Wolvercote submitted a petition on behalf of the 16 children and their families not given a place at Wolvercote Primary School. He stated that the petition was signed by 600 local residents deeply concerned at the impact on the children and the community. The shock of being excluded from the school was compounded by the distances they were being asked to travel to the schools allocated. He recognised that the rules were changed from next year but that this was little comfort to those affected this year. He felt that there had been a failure to implement the changes in time. He added that Wolvercote Primary School was over subscribed but that Governors had proposed solutions. Finally in stating the view of the petitioners that the proposals were detrimental and that the welfare of the children should come first he hoped that the funding could be found to fund the proposals that had the backing of Governors.

Councillor Michael Waine replied that he was looking forward to meeting with those concerned this evening at a meeting that had already been arranged. Roy Leach, Strategic Lead, School Organisation & Planning had worked extremely hard to find a solution and the rules changes had gone through the proper processes for reviewing the Code for admissions. The changes proposed came into the system once the year process had begun.

He referred to reports in the local press which had been misleading. Oxfordshire was above the national average for meeting preferences but there would always be some parents who got none of their preferences.

Other wise there would be excess capacity in the school system which central government was keen to minimise. He accepted that there were hot spots that meant real issues for parents. He referred to the situation in Banbury which was another hot spot. Of 19 cases there 10 had not chosen a Banbury school, 3 made a single preference and 2 a double preference. Parents putting only one preference that could not be met went to the bottom of the list in terms of allocating places. He added that the current allocations were an offer and were not an attempt to tell parents what they should do. There would be a full appraisal after 26 March and he expected that the position could change significantly. He hoped that the local press would be able to support parents by underlining these messages.

27/10 FINANCIAL MONITORING - MARCH 2010

(Agenda Item. 6)

Cabinet received the tenth financial monitoring report (**CA6**) for the 2009/10 financial year, covering the period up to the end of January 2010. It included projections for revenue, balances, reserves and capital monitoring.

The total in – year Directorate forecast was an overspend of +£4.459m or +1.19% of the latest budget.

The current position for general balances showed a forecast of £10.638m after taking account of agreed and proposed requests for supplementary estimates. After taking into account the forecast Directorate overspend adjusted for supplementary estimates requested to date the consolidated revenue balances forecast was £9.154m.

Councillor Zoé Patrick referred to the supplementary estimate being requested and queried whether this sum was sufficient in view of the number of pot holes to be mended. Councillor Rose replied that as the snow melted a sum of had been made available to allow reactive repairs but it was always envisaged that more work would be required as the full extent of the damage became known.

The Leader in noting the current position welcomed that the PCT had been able to address their commitment to the pooled budgets. The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families, welcomed Meera Spillett, as the new Director for Children, Young People & Families and commented that she was already taking steps to ensure that the Directorate was close to budget.

RESOLVED: to:

- (a) note the report; and
- (b) approve the supplementary estimate request of £0.425m in relation to winter maintenance in Annex 2f and paragraph 45 and 46.

28/10 LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 2011-2030 DRAFT POLICIES

(Agenda Item. 7)

Cabinet considered a report (**CA7**) that outlined the progress that is being made in developing the new Local Transport Plan (LTP3) and informed members of the results of the consultation that had taken place on the draft policies for inclusion in the Plan. These policies will form the basis on which a draft Plan will be prepared for public consultation.

Councillor David Turner, Shadow Cabinet Member for Transport, referred to earlier suggestions for schemes and welcomed assurances given by the Cabinet Member that these would be re-assessed as part of the long list of potential schemes. He commented on the policy concerning support for public transport services to hospitals and noted that Councillor Hudspeth had agreed to look into this. He expressed support for the use of Park & Ride facilities for rural bus services during off peak hours. This would enable an improved rural service and reduce congestion in the centre of Oxford. He further commented on individual policies including expressing the wish that South Oxfordshire District Council would become involved with disability transport (D1).

Councillor Hudspeth thanked the Shadow Cabinet Member for his comments many of which he was aware of as a result of the discussions at the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee. He stressed that the LTP 3 was a long term policy document and plan. He did not wish to be too prescriptive but to be engaged with as many groups as possible to be aware of their aspirations. He added that all Cabinet Members had received the full policies. With regard to the 'long list' of schemes he stressed that there was a health warning over what could be achieved. There was a need to be realistic whilst wishing to capture a true indication of the County's aspirations.

Cabinet considered the stakeholder comments and subsequent changes set out in the addenda.

RESOLVED: to

- (a) approve the list of policies set out in Annex 2 to this report, amended as set out in the addendum to this report, as the basis for the development of a draft Local Transport Plan; and
- (b) note the timetable for the completion of the Plan.

29/10 HOMES & COMMUNITIES AGENCY SINGLE CONVERSATION: LOCAL INVESTMENT PLAN

(Agenda Item. 8)

Cabinet considered a report (CA8) that outlined the ongoing work with the Homes and Communities Agency to develop a Local Investment Plan (LIP) and Local Investment agreement (LIA) for Oxfordshire. The aim was to

produce a final LIP signed off by the Oxfordshire local authorities by 31 March 2010.

Councillor Purse, Shadow Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure, congratulated the officers and lead members on a hugely important piece of work. She recognised the tight timescales and accepted the need to delegate the authority to agree the final document. However in view of its significance she asked that members be kept informed by way of Council or at least the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee. Councillor Hudspeth added his thanks to officers for bringing the report together in a very short time period. He was happy for the item to come back to the Scrutiny Committee. He proposed that in addition to himself the Leader also be consulted on the final Plan.

Officers drew attention to the comments of the Growth & Infrastructure Scrutiny Committee set out in the addenda and noted that the Plan was a work in progress. The Leader commented on the priorities, feeling that work was needed to better reflect the balance between economy, housing and infrastructure. He queried how much funding would eventually come with the process and emphasised that the priorities should reflect deliverability and effectiveness and not merely geographic spread. He also noted that the pilot was the only one covering a County Council and he would wish the Plan to be recognised as County wide and not restricted to the Central area.

Responding to a query from Councillor Couchman about the links to the 14 localities and 6 priority areas previously agreed, Cabinet was advised that there was representation across the County and work was continuing to develop a relationship with the locality work.

RESOLVED: to delegate to the Head of Sustainable Development in consultation with the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure authority to agree to and sign off the final Local Investment Plan.

30/10 WOOD FARM PRIMARY SCHOOL AND SLADE NURSERY SCHOOL

(Agenda Item. 9)

Cabinet considered a Project Appraisal for one of 2 projects in Oxfordshire to be funded from the first wave of the Department for Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) Primary Capital Programme (PCP).

The project would completely replace the existing Wood Farm Primary School, Slade Nursery/Children's Centre and community buildings with a new integrated facility for the two schools and the Children's Centre as well as providing space to support community use.

Councillor Brighouse, speaking as a local member in support of the project, thanked the Leader and Cabinet Members for Schools Improvement and Children, Young People & Families for their efforts in support of the project.

She also thanked officers and staff at the school for their work. She commented that the project was about raising aspirations in the community.

The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families agreed that the scheme was a commitment to raising aspirations in the area. It put a value on the community and said something about the Councils hopes for that community.

Cabinet noted the partnership nature of the project and the Leader added that the Bilateral meetings with Oxford city council had been useful in progressing the scheme.

RESOLVED: to approve Project Appraisal ED749 for replacement of existing buildings at Wood Farm Primary School and The Slade Nursery School & Children's Centre, Oxford as part of the Primary Capital Programme.

31/10 PROPOSAL TO EXPAND LARKRISE PRIMARY SCHOOL, OXFORD (Agenda Item. 10)

Cabinet considered a report (CA10) setting out a proposal to increase the admission number of Larkrise Primary School from 45 to 60 children, on a permanent basis from September 2010. This will eventually increase the school's total roll from its current 349 children in Years F-6 (September 2009 pupil census) to a maximum of 420.

A decision was sought as to whether to proceed to issuing a statutory notice to expand the school, in accordance with The Education and Inspections Act 2006 (EIA 2006) and The School Organisation (Prescribed Alterations to Maintained Schools)(England) Regulations 2007 (as amended by The School Organisation and Governance (Amendments)(England) Regulations 2007 which came into force on 21 January 2008).

RESOLVED: to approve the publication of a statutory notice for the expansion of Larkrise Primary School, Oxford.

32/10 THE COOPER SCHOOL, BICESTER

(Agenda Item. 11)

Cabinet considered a Project Approval Report for the construction of a new Sixth Form Centre at The Cooper School, Bicester.

The sixth form centre will be housed in a new purpose built building. To ensure that sufficient accommodation is in place to support the change in age range at the school the project also includes an extension to the school's science faculty to provide 2 additional science laboratories and alterations to the Design & Technology area to create an engineering workshop.

The Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement commented that the scheme was a major capital commitment that would deliver the most significant

improvement in post 16 education in a generation. It would raise the expectation and aspirations in the area.

Cabinet noted that officers continued to seek funding from the learning & Skills Council. Councillor Hudspeth welcomed the funding from the Department for Communities and Local Government and stated that he would work with Cherwell DC to see if there was any additional funding.

RESOLVED; to approve Project Appraisal ED747 for the provision of new Sixth Form Accommodation at Cooper School, Bicester.

.

33/10 CITY CENTRE STREET SCENE MANUAL (PART ONE)

(Agenda Item. 12)

Cabinet considered a report updating them on progress in producing the Oxford city centre street scene manual: part one, and seeking their approval of the manual. The manual has been jointly produced by Oxford City Council and Oxfordshire County Council, with support from the West End Partnership. The report also sought approval for officers to start work on some immediate actions that flow from the manual.

Councillor Purse, Shadow Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure, commented that the consultation with groups with sensory impairment was mostly about sight. She raised concerns about the mix of cyclists and pedestrians in terms of people with a hearing problem not being aware that cyclists were near. She hoped that the result of the manual would not be to create a style that dated but one that could be applied to be create a timeless style. She queried what could be done to ensure that the utilities coordinated their work with other street works

Councillor Hudspeth responded to the points made commenting that they were working with cycling groups to ensure cyclists acted responsibly. The manual provided a basis to ensure materials complemented each other but he would not wish to see all building the same. Co-ordination of work by the utilities was an ongoing struggle.

The Leader commented that under SS2 – the hierarchy of users - the wording against motorists was unnecessary and should be removed.

RESOLVED: to

- (c) endorse the Oxford city centre street scene manual: part one as the basis for the design, maintenance and management of streets in Oxford city centre;
- (d) authorise the Head of Transport, in consultation with the Cabinet Members for Growth and Infrastructure and Transport Implementation, to make minor amendments to the document:

- (e) instruct officers to continue to work with Oxford City Council to develop subsequent parts of the manual; and
- (f) instruct officers to work on the proposed immediate actions at Annex 3 and report to the Cabinet Member for Transport.

34/10 IRMP ACTION PLAN - FINAL

(Agenda Item. 13)

Cabinet considered a report (**CA13**) that proposed the projects to be included within the Fire Authority's Integrated Risk Management (IRMP) Action Plan for the fiscal year 2010-11.

Mr Steve Allen, Chairman of Oxfordshire FBU and a resident of Wantage stated that he was aware of the bigger picture but was speaking to protest about the threat to public safety posed by the proposals. In particular he felt that project 1 put people at risk in Didcot and Abingdon. He also referred to the reduction in Oxford City centre and weekend working.

Councillor John Goddard, Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities, noted that Oxfordshire enjoyed an efficient and effective Fire Rescue Service. He felt that project 1 would increase the risk for some people in Didcot and Abingdon at some times of the week. He referred to a number of areas, including Harwell, which no longer provided their own cover. He referred to the underlying problem of the difficulty in recruiting and retaining retained fire fighters and queried how this would be tackled in the long term.

Councillor Judith Heathcoat introduced the contents of the report setting out the context for the seven projects, the commitment to continuing the direction of travel of the service and the level of public and service consultation undertaken.

The Deputy Chief Fire Officer added that the projects identified would challenge the way that services were provided. He referred to various reviews all of which had identified a need to put more support into the retained system. He referred in particular to the details of project 1. He gave an assurance that the outcome of the review would be at least the same number of fire engines and fire fighters for the area. The outcome would be a more sustainable retained fire service. It would unlock capacity to deliver fire safety education.

Responding to questions from Cabinet Members the Deputy Chief Fire Officer stated that they had been very open about the project with the intention of evoking debate. They had been open with their workforce and would work to address concerns as best they could.

There was some discussion of the modelling software used that had information for all stations over a number of years. Historical data was captured and used in the model. Date would continue to be captured and

would enable the changes to be checked to see they had the desired effect. The Deputy Chief Fire Officer paid tribute to Martin Crapper, who would be retiring shortly and who had done a great deal of the modelling work.

Councillor Louise Chapman in referring to the fantastic job done by fire fighters proposed that Cabinet receive a report back on the changes to see that they were working as expected.

Councillor Heathcoat concluded that they had consulted extensively. The paper set out the concerns. She noted that project 1 had received some positive comments. She acknowledged the response of South Oxfordshire District Council. Finally she paid tribute to the Fire Service that provided consistently the highest performance at the lowest cost through the efforts of an excellent leadership team and work force.

On a show of hands it was unanimously

RESOLVED:

- (a) to approve all seven of the proposed projects for inclusion in the IRMP action plan 2010/11; namely:
 - Project 1: Day crewing review at Abingdon and Didcot Fire Stations.
 - Project 2: Special appliance review, including a review of aerial rescue appliances and specialist rescue capability.
 - Project 3: Use of operational staff to deliver our obligations under the Fire Safety Order.
 - Project 4: Review of our co-responder arrangements with South Central Ambulance Service.
 - Project 5: Review prevention and risk reduction.
 - Project 6: Operational resilience review.
 - Project 7: Further development of the Services approach to the Equality framework for Local Government.
- (b) in light of the concerns expressed through the extensive internal and external consultation, to instruct the Chief Fire Officer to mitigate as far as practicable concerns raised when considering any future duty system;
- (c) in recognising the public concern around the potential impact of project one on attendance times to incidents during specific short periods, to instruct the Chief Fire Officer to report to the Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger Communities, Cabinet and the related Scrutiny Committee on a four monthly basis in the first twelve months after implementation. This report to also include details of the beneficial elements to RDS stations from the staff redeployment of the four Watch Managers; and

(d) to instruct the Chief Fire Officer to provide performance data relating to the implementation of project one to the South and Vale of White Horse District Councils and Abingdon and Didcot Town Councils.

35/10 OXFORDSHIRE ECONOMIC ASSESSMENT

(Agenda Item. 14)

Cabinet considered a report seeking approval to the draft of the Oxfordshire Economic Assessment for wider consultation. This consultation will seek the views from partners on how the assessment could be improved.

Councillor Robertson thanked Dave Waller for his work in drawing the Assessment together and commented that it had been developed with advice from SEEDA. District Councils.

RESOLVED: to approve the two reports, the first a summary of findings and the second the full economic assessment as the basis for consultation with Oxfordshire Partnership members and others.

36/10 PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT: 3RD QUARTER PROGRESS REPORT AGAINST PRIORITIES AND TARGETS

(Agenda Item. 15)

Cabinet considered a report (**CA15**) that showed the council's performance in the four key areas of: customer, projects, finance, and people for Quarter 3 2009/2010.

Councillor Fooks referred to a number of positives in the report including the number of apprentices taken on and the greater number of appraisals being completed on time. She highlighted a number of concerns including safeguarding; children protection plans; lack of staffing resources for climate change adaptation and the teenage conception rate. She also referred to the lack of information on the reduction of carbon levels.

Councillor Robertson responded to the points made, commenting that the records of individual targets developed over a number of years was helpful. Information on climate change was available on the web site. He noted that the increase in the appraisal figures was due to improving the reporting of what was already happening. The Cabinet Member for Children, Young People & Families responded in respect of safeguarding, action plans and teenage conception rates. She noted that there would be a report on safeguarding to the next Corporate Parenting Panel. The cabinet member for Schools Improvement referred to the figures on raising achievement and explained the national context behind the rise in numbers of schools in special measures from one to three.

RESOLVED: to note the report.

37/10 ESTABLISHMENT REVIEW - MARCH 2010

(Agenda Item. 16)

Cabinet considered a report (**CA16**) that gave an update on activity since the implementation of the Establishment Review and associated Recruitment Approval process on 1 August 2005. It provided detail on the overall objectives of the review and summarised progress made against the targets which were agreed to ensure delivery of those objectives. Details of the agreed establishment figure at 31 December 2009 in terms of Full Time Equivalents were provided, together with the detailed staffing position at 31 December 2009. The report also provides information on current activity and in addition there is information on grant funded posts and those vacancies which are being covered by agency staff and at what cost.

RESOLVED:	to

- (a) note the report;
- (b) confirm that the Establishment Review continues to meet the Cabinet's requirements in reporting and managing staffing numbers.

38/10 FORWARD PLAN AND FUTURE BUSINESS

Date of signing

(Agenda Item. 17)

The Cabinet considered a list of items for the immediately forthcoming meetings of the Cabinet together with changes and additions set out in the schedule of addenda.

RESOLVED: to note the items currently identified for forthcoming

in the Chair	
	in the Chair